
 

 

13 May 2019 

At 5.00 pm 

 

Council 
 



Council 13 May 2019 

  

Agenda 
  
 

 

 
 
1.   Confirmation of Minutes 

 

 

2.   Disclosures of Interest 

 

 

3.   Minutes by the Lord Mayor 

 

 

4.   Memoranda by the Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

5.   Matters for Tabling 

 

 

6.   Report of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee 

 

 

 6.1   Disclosures of Interest 

 

 

 6.2   2018/19 Quarter 3 Review – Delivery Program 2017–2021 

 

 

 6.3   Public Exhibition - Integrated Planning and Reporting Program and 
Budget 2019/20 

 

 

 6.4   Investments Held as at 31 March 2019 

 

 

 6.5   Policy - Adoption - Code of Conduct 

 

 

 6.6   Post Exhibition - Code of Meeting Practice 

 

 

 6.7   Policy - Adoption - Corporate Sponsorship Policy 

 

 

 6.8   Contract Variation - Child Care Management Agreement - 
Children's Services Community Management 

 

 

 6.9   Cancellation of Tender - Street Furniture, Out-of-Home Media and 
Wi-Fi Services 

 

 

 6.10   Exemption from Tender - Joynton Avenue and Zetland Avenue East 
Roadworks 

 

 

 6.11   Tender - Asset Compliance Services 

 

 

 6.12   Lease Approval - Levels 8, 9 and 10 - 343 George Street, Sydney 

 

 

 6.13   Lease Approval - Part Ground Floor, Levels 1 and 2, 101 William 
Street, Darlinghurst 

 



Council 13 May 2019 

  

Agenda 
  
 

 

 

 6.14   Lease Approval - Level 9, 540 George Street, Sydney 

 

 

 Economic Development and Business Sub-Committee 

 6.15   Knowledge Exchange Sponsorship - Textbook Ventures 

 

 

7.   Report of the Cultural and Community Committee 

 

 

 7.1   Disclosures of Interest 

 

 

 Cultural and Creative Sub-Committee 

 7.2   Post Exhibition - Local Approvals Policy for Busking and Aboriginal 
and Torres Strait Islander Cultural Practice 

 

 

 7.3   Festivals and Events Sponsorship (Village and Community) - 
Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land Council - Eora Inner City 
NAIDOC 

 

 

 Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 

 7.4   Post Exhibition - A City for All: Community Safety Action Plan 2019-
2023 

 

 

 7.5   Policy - Adoption - Companion Animals Policy 

 

 

8.   Report of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 

 

 

 8.1   Disclosures of Interest 

 

 

 8.2   Post Exhibition - Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 
Amendment - Late Night Trading 2018 (Not Liquor Licensing) 

 

 

 8.3   Post Exhibition - Planning Proposal - Heritage Listing of 1A 
Elizabeth Bay Road (Kingsley Hall), 22-24 Darlinghurst Road (The 
Bourbon) and 32-32A Darlinghurst Road (The Empire) 

 

 

 8.4   Public Exhibition - Planning Proposal - 46 Chisholm Street, 
Darlinghurst – Sydney Local Environmental Plan 2012 Amendment 

 

 

 8.5   Traffic Treatment - Parkham Place, Surry Hills - Permanent Road 
Closure to Traffic from Nobbs Lane to Parkham Lane 

 

 

 8.6   Traffic Treatment - Parkham Lane, Surry Hills - Permanent Road 
Closure to Traffic from Olivia Lane to Bourke Street 

 

 



Council 13 May 2019 

  

Agenda 
  
 

 

 8.7   Traffic Treatment - Olivia Lane, Surry Hills - Permanent Road 
Closure to Traffic from Nobbs Lane to Parkham Lane 

 

 

 8.8   Fire Safety Reports 

 

 

9.   Questions on Notice 

 

 

10.   Supplementary Answers to Previous Questions 

 

 

11.   Notices of Motion 

 

 

 11.1   Support for Disability Advocacy Services in NSW 

 

 

 11.2   Reusable Coffee Cup Scheme 

 

 

 11.3   Vale Ron Austin 

 

 

 11.4   Safety Audit of Local Schools 

 

 

 11.5   Save the Curtain Call Statue 

 

 

 11.6   Doggy Pool Parties 

 

 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

Item 1 

Confirmation of Minutes 

Minutes of the following meeting of Council are submitted for confirmation: 

Meeting of 8 April 2019 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

Item 2 

Disclosures of Interest 

(a) Section 451 of the Local Government Act 1993 

Pursuant to the provisions of section 451 of the Local Government Act 1993, Councillors are 
required to disclose pecuniary interests in any matter on the agenda for this meeting of 
Council. 

Councillors are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the 
agenda for this meeting of Council in accordance with the relevant clauses of the Code of 
Conduct – February 2016. 

This will include receipt of reportable political donations over the previous four years. 

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed. 

Written disclosures of interest received by the Chief Executive Officer in relation to items for 
consideration at this meeting will be laid on the table.  

(b) Local Government and Planning Legislation Amendment (Political 
Donations) Act 2008 

The Local Government and Planning Legislation Amendment (Political Donations) Act 2008 
(“the Act”) requires the disclosure of relevant political donations or gifts when planning 
applications are made to minimise any perception of undue influence. The amendments to 
the Act require disclosure to the Electoral Funding Authority of: 

 a reportable political donation as defined in the Election Funding and Disclosures 
Act 1981 (a donation of $1000 or more made to or for the benefit of the party, elected 
member, group or candidate or made by a major political donor to or for the benefit of 
a party, elected member, group or candidate, or made to the major political donor), or  

 a gift (as defined in the Election Funding and Disclosures Act 1981) to any local 
councillor or council employee (and includes a disposition of property or a gift of 
money or the provision of other valuable or service for no consideration or for 
inadequate consideration) when a relevant planning application is made to a council.  

A donation of less than $1000 can be a reportable political donation if the aggregated total of 
such donations was made by an entity or person to the same party, elected member, group 
or candidate or person. 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

Item 3 

Minutes by the Lord Mayor 

Any Minutes by the Lord Mayor will be circulated prior to or at the meeting of Council. 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

Item 4. 

Memoranda by the Chief Executive Officer 

There are no Memoranda by the Chief Executive Officer for this meeting of Council. 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

Item 5 

Matters for Tabling 

5.1 Disclosures of Interest 

Disclosure of Interest returns that have been lodged in accordance with sections 449(1) and 
449(3) of the Local Government Act 1993 will be laid on the table. 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that the Disclosures of Interest returns be received and noted. 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

 
 
 

Item 6 

Report of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee - 6 May 2019 

Item 6.1 

Disclosures of Interest 

No Councillors disclosed any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in any matters on the agenda for 
this meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee. 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.2 

2018/19 Quarter 3 Review – Delivery Program 2017–2021 

It is resolved that Council: 

(A) note the financial performance of Council for the third quarter of the 2019 financial year, 
ending 31 March 2019, including the Quarter 3 Net Surplus of $27.4M and the full year Net 
Surplus forecast of $12.0M, as outlined in the subject report and summarised in Attachment A 
to the subject report; 

(B) note the Quarter 3 Capital Works expenditure of $138.4M and a revised full year forecast of 
$235.6M, and approve the proposed adjustments to the adopted budget, including the 
bringing forward of $2.5M in funds into the 2018/19 capital budget, as detailed in Attachment 
B to the subject report; 

(C) note the Information Services capital expenditure of $5.7M, and a full year forecast of $9.7M, 
and approve the proposed adjustments to the adopted budget by bringing forward $0.3M in 
funds into the 2018/19 capital budget; 

(D) note the Quarter 3 Plant and Assets expenditure of $7.7M, net of disposals, and the full year 
forecast of $16.1M; 

(E) note the Quarter 3 Property Acquisition/Divestment net expenditure of $21.6M, and the full 
year forecast net proceeds of $37.6M; and 

(F) note the supplementary reports, including contracts issued over $50,000, major legal issues 
and the Quick Response, Banner Pole and Reduced Rate Grant Programs in Quarter 3, as 
detailed in Attachment C to the subject report. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), and 
carried unanimously.) 

S096187 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.3 

Public Exhibition - Integrated Planning and Reporting Program and Budget 2019/20 

It is resolved that Council: 

(A) endorse the suite of Integrated Planning and Reporting documents for public exhibition 
for a period of 28 days, including: 

(i) the draft Operational Plan 2019/20 as shown at Attachment A to the subject 
report; and 

(ii) the draft Resourcing Strategy 2019 as shown as Attachment B to the subject 
report; 

(B) endorse the draft Operating and Capital Budget, and future years' forward estimates, 
as reflected in the draft Operational Plan 2019/20 and draft Resourcing Strategy 2019 
including: 

(i) operating income of $609.4M, operating expenditure before depreciation of 
$496.1M for an Operating Result of $113.3M, and a Net Surplus of $74.9M after 
allowing for interest, depreciation and capital contributions; 

(ii) Capital Works expenditure of $196.4M;  

(iii)  a capital contingency of $5.0M; 

(iv) Plant and Assets net expenditure of $14.0M; 

(v) Information Technology Capital Works of $16.8M; and  

(vi) Net Property Acquisitions of $139.5M; and 

(C) endorse the proposed Rating Structure and Domestic Waste Management Charges, 
Stormwater Charges and User Fees and Charges discussed within the subject report 
and included within the draft Operational Plan 2019/20. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), 
and carried unanimously.) 

X020943 

 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.4 

Investments Held as at 31 March 2019 

It is resolved that the Investment Report as at 31 March 2019 be received and noted. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by Councillor Thalis, and carried 
unanimously.) 

X020701 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.5 

Policy - Adoption - Code of Conduct 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council adopt the City of Sydney Code of Conduct, shown at Attachment B to the subject 
report;  

(B) Council adopt the City of Sydney Procedures for Administration of the Code of Conduct, 
shown at Attachment C to the subject report; and 

(C) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to make minor amendments to the Code 
of Conduct and the Procedures for the Administration of the Code of Conduct, as required 
from time to time, subject to all Councillors being informed of any such changes. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by Councillor Scully, and carried 
unanimously.) 

S121910 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.6 

Post Exhibition - Code of Meeting Practice 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council adopt the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice as shown at Attachment A to the 
subject report; 

(B) Council fix the order of business of meetings of council as the following: 

(i) opening of the meeting; 

(ii) prayer and acknowledgement of country; 

(iii) apologies and applications for a leave of absence by councillors; 

(iv) confirmation of minutes; 

(v) disclosures of interest; 

(vi) minutes by the Lord Mayor; 

(vii) memoranda by the Chief Executive Officer; 

(viii) matters for tabling; 

(ix) reports of committees; 

(x) reports to council; 

(xi) questions on notice; 

(xii) supplementary answers to previous questions; 

(xiii) notices of motion; 

(xiv) confidential matters; and 

(xv) conclusion of the meeting; and 

(C) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to make minor amendments to the Code 
of Meeting Practice, as required from time to time, subject to all Councillors being informed of 
any such changes. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by Councillor Thalis, and carried 
unanimously.) 

S051923 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.7 

Policy - Adoption - Corporate Sponsorship Policy 

It is resolved that Council adopt the Corporate Sponsorship Policy with amendments as shown at 
Attachment A to the subject report. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), and 
carried unanimously.) 

X023684 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.8 

Contract Variation - Child Care Management Agreement - Children's Services 
Community Management 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council enter into a contract variation with Children's Services Community Management for 
Chippendale Child Care so that the period of management of the child care service ends by 
31 December 2019;  

(B) Council approve the payment of additional funds to Children's Services Community 
Management as outlined in Confidential Attachment A to the subject report, should this be 
required;  

(C) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to finalise negotiations and enter into 
any documentation necessary to give effect to clauses (A) and (B); and  

(D) Council approve funding from the 2018/19 General Contingency budget, in the event that the 
additional costs are not able to be absorbed through savings in the People, Performance and 
Technology operational budget for 2018/19. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by Councillor Miller, and carried 
unanimously.) 

S080772 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

Item 6.9 

Cancellation of Tender - Street Furniture, Out-of-Home Media and Wi-Fi Services 

The Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee decided that consideration on this 
matter be deferred to the meeting of Council on 13 May 2019. 

Officer’s Recommendation 

The officer’s recommendation to the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee was 
as follows -  

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council decline to accept the tender received for Street Furniture, Out-of-Home Media and 
Wi-Fi Services, for the reasons set out in Confidential Attachment A to the subject report; 

(B) Council cancel the proposal for the contract the subject of the tender referred to in (A) above 
due to current market conditions; 

(C) Council note that because of extenuating circumstances a satisfactory result would not be 
achieved by inviting fresh tenders for the Street Furniture, Out-of-Home Media and Wi-Fi 
Services; 

(D) Council note the reasons why a satisfactory result would not be achieved by inviting tenders 
are:  

(i) given the lack of competitive tenderers available; and  

(ii) current market conditions,  

as detailed in Confidential Attachment A; 

(E) Council:  

(i) note its commitment to the delivery of the Street Furniture, Out-of-Home Media 
and Wi-Fi Services;  

(ii) note that the City will consider alternative options for the provision of Street 
Furniture, Out-of-Home Media and Wi-Fi Services; and 

(iii) delegate authority to the Chief Executive Officer to approach any person who is a 
provider of Street Furniture services, Out-of-Home Media services or Wi-Fi 
Services for the purpose of determining the alternative options for the delivery of 
any or all of these services;  

(F) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and administer 
contracts for any or all of the services referred to in (E) above; and 

(G) Councillors be informed of the outcomes referred to in (E) above. 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
Officer’s Report 

The officer’s report on this matter can be found at Item 9 on the agenda for the meeting of the 
Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee on 6 May 2019. 

(Note – this matter was dealt with by the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee 
as follows: 

Moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor) –  

That the recommendation contained in the officer’s report to the Corporate, Finance, Properties 
and Tenders Committee be adopted. 

Following discussion, the motion was withdrawn and the Corporate, Finance, Properties and 
Tenders Committee decided that consideration of this matter be deferred to the meeting of Council 
on 13 May 2019.) 

X019237 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.10 

Exemption from Tender - Joynton Avenue and Zetland Avenue East Roadworks 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve an exemption from tender for the construction of Joynton Avenue upgrade 
and Zetland Avenue (East) noting that, because of extenuating circumstances, a satisfactory 
result would not be achieved by inviting tenders;  

(B) Council note the reasons why a satisfactory result would not be achieved by inviting tenders 
are: 

(i) going to tender would not deliver a competitive outcome as the market has already 
been tested through a previous tender and negotiations to vary the Gunyama Park 
Aquatic and Recreation Centre contract; 

(ii) Contractor A's offer demonstrates value for money, as described in Confidential 
Attachment A to the subject report; and 

(iii) there is insufficient time to undertake a competitive tender without impacting on the 
project delivery milestones of the Gunyama Park Aquatic and Recreation Centre; 

(C) Council enter into a contract with Contactor A for the construction of Joynton Avenue upgrade 
and Zetland Avenue (East) for the amount set out in Confidential Attachment A to the subject 
report; 

(D) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to  negotiate, execute and administer 
the contract with  Contractor A, as outlined in Confidential Attachment A to the subject report, 
provided that the contract is consistent with this resolution;   

(E) Council note the financial implications detailed in Confidential Attachment A to the subject 
report; 

(F) Council note the outcome of the negotiations to vary the Gunyama Park Aquatic and 
Recreation Centre contract for the construction of Joynton Avenue upgrade and Zetland 
Avenue (East) as set out in Confidential Attachment A to the subject report; and 

(G) Councillors be advised of the outcome of contract negotiations with Contractor A via a CEO 
Update. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by Councillor Thalis, and carried 
unanimously.) 

S105609 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.11 

Tender - Asset Compliance Services 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council accept the tender offer of tenderer D for the provision of Asset Compliance Services 
for a period of two years, with the option of four further extensions of two years each if 
appropriate; 

(B) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and administer the 
contracts relating to the tender; and 

(C) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to exercise the options referred to in 
clause A, if appropriate, and negotiate the price to extend the contract accordingly. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by Councillor Thalis, and carried 
unanimously.) 

X019256.013 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.12 

Lease Approval - Levels 8, 9 and 10 - 343 George Street, Sydney 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve the grant of a lease to Atlassian Pty Ltd for Levels 8, 9 and 10, 343 George 
Street, Sydney. The proposed new lease is for a three-year and four-month term, with an 
additional option term of two one-year options, which would extend Atlassian’s tenure to 30 
June 2025; and 

(B) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and administer the 
lease in accordance with the terms contained in Confidential Attachment A to the subject 
report. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by Councillor Scott, and carried 
unanimously.) 

S096167 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.13 

Lease Approval - Part Ground Floor, Levels 1 and 2, 101 William Street, Darlinghurst 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve the grant of a 10-year lease to City Gym Sydney Pty Ltd for Part Ground 
Floor, Level 1 and Level 2, 101 William Street, Darlinghurst, which includes an option of five 
years; and  

(B) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and administer the 
terms of the lease in accordance with Confidential Attachment A to the subject report. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by Councillor Scott, and carried 
unanimously.) 

S099737 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.14 

Lease Approval - Level 9, 540 George Street, Sydney 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve the grant of a lease to Australian Technical & Management College Pty Ltd 
for Level 9, 540 George Street, Sydney. The proposed new lease includes a term of eight 
years, which would extend the current tenant's tenure to 31 December 2026; and 

(B) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and administer the 
terms of the lease in accordance with the terms contained in Confidential Attachment A to the 
subject report. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Kok, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), and 
carried unanimously.) 

S098637.006 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Sub-Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 6.15 

Knowledge Exchange Sponsorship - Textbook Ventures 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve a cash sponsorship of $10,000 (excluding GST) for Textbook Ventures’ 
initiatives; and 

(B) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and administer a 
sponsorship agreement with Textbook Ventures. 

(Note – At the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee, this 
recommendation was moved by Councillor Vithoulkas, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), 
and carried unanimously.) 

Speaker 

Mr Clinton Chan addressed the meeting of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders 
Committee (Economic Development and Business Sub-Committee) on Item 6.15. 

X023779 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

 
 
 

Item 7 

Report of the Cultural and Community Committee - 6 May 2019 

Item 7.1 

Disclosures of Interest 

No Councillors disclosed any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the agenda for 
this meeting of the Cultural and Community Committee. 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Sub-Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 7.2 

Post Exhibition - Local Approvals Policy for Busking and Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander Cultural Practice 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council adopt Sections 2 and 3 of the Local Approvals Policy for Busking and Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander Cultural Practice, as shown at Attachment A to the subject report; 

(B) Council endorse Section 1 of the Local Approvals Policy for Busking and Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander Cultural Practice, as shown at Attachment A to the subject report, and 
authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to adopt Section 1 of the policy upon 
receipt of consent from the Chief Executive of the Office of Local Government, or their 
equivalent, as required by Section 162 of the Local Government Act 1993; 

(C) Council note the Protocols for the practice of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Culture in 
public places, as shown at Attachment B to the subject report; 

(D) Council note the Sydney Busking Code, as shown at Attachment C to the subject report; 

(E) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to make minor changes to the Local 
Approvals Policy for clarity or correction prior to publishing and implementation; and 

(F) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to approve amendments to the Busking 
Code and the Protocols for the practice of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Culture in 
public places, from time to time. 

(Note – At the meeting of the Cultural and Community Committee, this recommendation was 
moved by Councillor Scully, seconded by Councillor Miller, and carried unanimously.)  

S122196.001 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Sub-Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 7.3 

Festivals and Events Sponsorship (Village and Community) - Metropolitan Local 
Aboriginal Land Council - Eora Inner City NAIDOC 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve a cash sponsorship of $20,000 (excluding GST) and $200 (excluding GST) 
community venue hire to the Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land Council representing the 
Eora NAIDOC community group for the 2019 Eora Inner City NAIDOC Family Fun Day; and 

(B) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and administer a 
sponsorship agreement with the Metropolitan Local Aboriginal Land Council in respect of the 
sponsorship referred to in (A) above. 

(Note – At the meeting of the Cultural and Community Committee, this recommendation was 
moved by Councillor Scully, seconded by Councillor Thalis, and carried unanimously.)  

Speakers 

Mr Blake Robinson addressed the meeting of the Cultural and Community Committee (Cultural and 
Creative Sub-Committee) on Item 7.3.  

S117676 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Sub-Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 7.4 

Post Exhibition - A City for All: Community Safety Action Plan 2019-2023 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council adopt the final Community Safety Action Plan 2019-2023 , as shown at Attachment A 
to the subject report; 

(B) Council note the amendments and additions to the draft Community Safety Action Plan 2018-
2023 made in response to the public consultation process, as detailed in Attachment B to the 
subject report; and 

(C) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to make amendments to the Community 
Safety Action Plan 2019-2023 in order to correct any minor drafting errors and finalise design, 
artwork and alternative format translations. 

(Note – At the meeting of the Cultural and Community Committee, the recommendation was moved 
by Councillor Scully, seconded by Councillor Miller, and carried unanimously.)  

X006829.002 

 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Sub-Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 7.5 

Policy - Adoption - Companion Animals Policy 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council endorse the draft updated Companion Animals Policy, as shown at Attachment A to 
the subject report; and  

(B) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to make minor amendments to the 
Companion Animals Policy, as required from time to time, subject to all Councillors being 
informed of any such changes. 

(Note – At the meeting of the Cultural and Community Committee, this recommendation was 
moved by Councillor Scully, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), and carried unanimously.)  

S103490.004 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

 
 
 

Item 8 

Report of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee - 6 May 2019 

Item 8.1 

Disclosures of Interest 

(a) Section 451 of the Local Government Act 1993 

No Councillors disclosed any pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the agenda for 
this meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee.  

(b) Local Government and Planning Legislation Amendment (Political Donations) Act 2008 

No disclosures were made by any members of the public at this meeting of the Transport, Heritage 
and Planning Committee. 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 8.2 

Post Exhibition - Sydney Development Control Plan 2012 Amendment - Late Night 
Trading 2018 (Not Liquor Licensing) 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council note the matters raised in submissions to the public exhibition of Draft Sydney 
Development Control Plan: Late Night Trading 2018 at Attachment C to the subject report; 

(B) Council approve Draft Sydney Development Control Plan: Late Night Trading 2018, at 
Attachment A to the subject report, as amended in response to submissions; and 

(C) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to make any minor amendments to the 
Sydney Development Control Plan: Late Night Trading 2018 to correct any minor errors or 
omissions prior to finalisation of the development control plan. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee, this recommendation 
was moved by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), seconded by Councillor Scott, and carried unanimously.) 

Speakers  

Ms Margaret Teague, Mr Jacob Hollier, Mr Peter Wright, Mr Adam Fynott, Ms Michelle Perry, Mr 
Liam Bathgate, Ms Catherine Capolupo, Ms Daria Grove, Mr Michael O'Brien-Brown, Ms Jeanette 
Brokman, Mr Michael Rodriguez, Ms Kerry Glasscock, Ms Amelia Colliver, Mr Tyson Koh, Mr 
Thomas Hespe, Mr Carrington Brigham, Mr Timo Bures, Ms Carly Roberts and Ms Beck Goldsby-
Smith addressed the meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee on Item 8.2. 

X011942 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 8.3 

Post Exhibition - Planning Proposal - Heritage Listing of 1A Elizabeth Bay Road 
(Kingsley Hall), 22-24 Darlinghurst Road (The Bourbon) and 32-32A Darlinghurst 
Road (The Empire) 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council note the matters raised in response to the public exhibition and public authority 
consultation of Planning Proposal – Heritage Listing of 1A Elizabeth Bay Road (Kingsley 
Hall); 22-24 Darlinghurst Road (The Bourbon); and 32-32A Darlinghurst Road (The Empire), 
Potts Point as shown at Attachment D to the subject report; 

(B) Council approve Planning Proposal – Heritage listing of 1A Elizabeth Bay Road (Kingsley 
Hall); 22-24 Darlinghurst Road (The Bourbon); and 32-32A Darlinghurst Road (The Empire), 
Potts Point, as shown at Attachment A to the subject report, to be made as a local 
environmental plan under section 3.36 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 
1979; and 

(C) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to make any minor variations to 
Planning Proposal – Heritage listing of 1A Elizabeth Bay Road (Kingsley Hall); 22-24 
Darlinghurst Road (The Bourbon); and 32-32A Darlinghurst Road (The Empire), Potts Point 
to correct drafting errors prior to finalisation of the local environmental plan. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee, this recommendation 
was moved by Councillor Thalis, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), and carried 
unanimously.) 

Speaker 

Mr Andrew Woodhouse addressed the meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee 
on Item 8.3. 

X018038 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

Item 8.4 

Public Exhibition - Planning Proposal - 46 Chisholm Street, Darlinghurst – Sydney 
Local Environmental Plan 2012 Amendment 

The Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee decided that consideration on this matter be 
deferred to the meeting of Council on 13 May 2019. 

Officer’s Recommendation 

The officer’s recommendation to the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee was as follows -  

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve the Planning Proposal: 46 Chisholm Street, Darlinghurst, as shown at 
Attachment A to the subject report, for submission to the relevant local plan-making authority 
with a request for a Gateway Determination; 

(B) Council approve Planning Proposal: 46 Chisholm Street, Darlinghurst for public authority 
consultation and public exhibition in accordance with any conditions imposed under the 
Gateway Determination; 

(C) Council seek authority from the relevant local plan making authority, to exercise the 
delegation of the relevant local plan making authority of all their functions under Section 3.31 
of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to make the local environmental 
plan as amended by Planning Proposal: 46 Chisholm Street, Darlinghurst; and 

(D) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to make any minor variations to 
Planning Proposal: 46 Chisholm Street, Darlinghurst following receipt of the Gateway 
Determination. 

Officer’s Report 

The officer’s report on this matter can be found at Item 4 on the agenda for the meeting of the 
Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee on 6 May 2019. 

(Note – this matter was dealt with by the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee as follows: 

Moved by Councillor Thalis, seconded by Councillor Scully – 

That the recommendation contained in the officer’s report to the Transport, Heritage and Planning 
Committee be adopted. 

Following the speakers and discussion, the motion was withrawn and the Transport, Heritage and 
Planning Committee decided that consideration of this matter be deferred to the meeting of Council 
on 13 May 2019.) 

Speakers 

Mrs Maria Kolb, Mr Anson Kolb and Mr Philip Bull addressed the meeting of the Transport, 
Heritage and Planning Committee on Item 8.4. 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

Extensions of Time 

During discussion on Item 8.4, pursuant to the provisions of Clause 250(3) of the Local 
Government (General) Regulation 2005, it was – 

Moved by Councillor Thalis, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor) – 

That Mrs Maria Kolb be granted an extension of time to speak on this matter. 

Carried unanimously. 

During discussion on Item 8.4, pursuant to the provisions of Clause 250(3) of the Local 
Government (General) Regulation 2005, it was – 

Moved by Councillor Thalis, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor) – 

That Mr Philip Bull be granted an extension of time to speak on this matter. 

Carried unanimously.  

X020345 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 8.5 

Traffic Treatment - Parkham Place, Surry Hills - Permanent Road Closure to Traffic 
from Nobbs Lane to Parkham Lane 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve the permanent closure of Parkham Place between Nobbs Lane and 
Parkham Lane; and 

(B) a Traffic Management Plan be submitted to the Roads and Maritime Services for the 
permanent closure of Parkham Place between Nobbs Lane and Parkham Lane. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee, this recommendation 
was moved by Councillor Thalis, seconded by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), and carried 
unanimously.) 

S120932 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 8.6 

Traffic Treatment - Parkham Lane, Surry Hills - Permanent Road Closure to Traffic 
from Olivia Lane to Bourke Street 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve the permanent closure of Parkham Lane to traffic from 106 metres west of 
Parkham Place to the western side of Olivia Lane; 

(B) a Traffic Management Plan be submitted to the Roads and Maritime Services for the 
permanent closure of Parkham Lane at Olivia Lane; and 

(C) a single lane connection be provided through the Parkham Lane closure and across 
community parkland to Bourke Street. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee, this recommendation 
was moved by Councillor Thalis, seconded by Councillor Scott, and carried unanimously.) 

S120932 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 8.7 

Traffic Treatment - Olivia Lane, Surry Hills - Permanent Road Closure to Traffic from 
Nobbs Lane to Parkham Lane 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council approve the permanent closure of Olivia Lane between Nobbs Lane and Parkham 
Lane; and 

(B) a Traffic Management Plan be submitted to the Roads and Maritime Services for the 
permanent closure of Olivia Lane between Nobbs Lane and Parkham Lane. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee, this recommendation 
was moved by Councillor Thalis, seconded by Councillor Miller, and carried unanimously.) 

S120932 



Council 13 May 2019 

 

 

The Committee recommends the following:- 

Item 8.8 

Fire Safety Reports 

It is resolved that Council: 

(A) note the contents of the Fire Safety Report Summary Sheet, as shown at Attachment A to the 
subject report; 

(B) note the inspection reports by Fire and Rescue NSW, as shown at Attachments B to Q of the 
subject report;  

(C) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 814 George Street, Haymarket, as detailed in Attachment 
B; 

(D) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a 
Fire Safety Order as recommended by the City's Investigation Officer to address the identified 
fire safety deficiencies in 383-389 Bulwara Road, Ultimo, as detailed in Attachment C; 

(E) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act 1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 278-284 Cleveland Street, Surry Hills, as detailed in 
Attachment D; 

(F) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a 
Fire Safety Order as recommended by the City's Investigation Officer to address the identified 
fire safety deficiencies in 6-10 Minogue Crescent, Forrest Lodge, as detailed in Attachment E; 

(G) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 20-26 Bayswater Road, Potts Point, as detailed in 
Attachment F; 

(H) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a 
Fire Safety Order as recommended by the City's Investigation Officer to address the identified 
fire safety deficiencies in 9 Wylde Street, Potts Point, as detailed in Attachment G; 

(I) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 231-235 Victoria Street,Darlinghurst,as detailed in 
Attachment H; 

(J) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 141 & 141A Victoria Street, Potts Point, as detailed in 
Attachment I; 

(K) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 9-11 Bayswater Road, Potts Point, as detailed in 
Attachment J; 



Council 13 May 2019 

 
(L) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 

Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 12-18 Forbes Street, Woolloomooloo as detailed in 
Attachment K; 

(M) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 6-8 Orwell Street, Potts Point, as detailed in Attachment 
L; 

(N) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a 
Fire Safety Order as recommended by the City's Investigation Officer to address the identified 
fire safety deficiencies in 84-84B Pitt Street, Sydney, as detailed in Attachment M; 

(O) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 10-24 Flinders Street,Darlinghurst,as detailed in 
Attachment N; 

(P) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 14 Darling Drive,Sydney,as detailed in Attachment O; 

(Q) exercise its power under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 to issue a 
Fire Safety Order as recommended by the City's Investigation Officer to address the identified 
fire safety deficiencies in 156 Botany Road,Alexandria,as detailed in Attachment P; and 

(R) not exercise its power to issue a Fire Safety Order under the Environmental Planning and 
Assessment Act1979 at this time but note the compliance action taken and as recommended 
by the City's Investigation Officer in 43-127 Morehead Street, Redfern, as detailed in 
Attachment Q. 

(Note – at the meeting of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee, this recommendation 
was moved by Councillor Thalis, seconded by Councillor Kok, and carried unanimously.) 

S105001.002 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Item 9 

Questions on Notice 

Centennial Hall Hire Statistics  

1. By Councillor Forster 

Question 

Please provide the following information for 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19 to date: 

1. How many days and evenings was Centennial Hall booked out? 

2. Of the total number of bookings, how many paid full commercial rates and how many 
received a discount of any kind?  

3. What was the total venue hire revenue received by the City for Centennial Hall for 
bookings subject to full commercial rates? 

4. What was the total venue hire revenue received by the City for Centennial Hall for 
bookings which were subject to discounts? 

S129269 

City of Sydney Ad Hoc Grants  

2. By Councillor Forster 

Question 

For 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19 to date: 

1. Please provide a breakdown of ad hoc grants awarded by the City. 

2. Please provide a breakdown of ad hoc grants to not-for-profit organisations and to for-
profit organisations. 

3. What was the total expenditure of these ad hoc grants for not-for-profit organisations 
and for-profit organisations? 

S129269 

  



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Park Fitness Equipment  

3. By Councillor Scott 

Question 

The Park Fitness Equipment Plan 2015 identifies the following locations as potential sites for 
the installation of park fitness equipment:  

(a) Turruwul Park, Rosebery 

(b) Alexandria Park, Alexandria 

(c) Waterloo Park, Waterloo 

(d) Observatory Hill Park, Millers Point (upgrade existing) 

(e) Pirrama Park, Pyrmont 

(f) South Sydney Rotary Park, Eveleigh (replace existing) 

(g) Embarkation Park, Potts Point 

(h) Johnstons Creek Parklands, Glebe 

(i) James Hilder Reserve, Surry Hills 

(j) Gunyama Park, Green Square 

(k) Victoria Park, Chippendale. 

Could Councillors please be advised of the following: 

1. Please outline the completion dates for the installation of park fitness equipment at 
each of these locations. 

2. Please outline the budget for the installation of park fitness equipment at each of these 
locations in the 2019/20 and 2020/21 financial years.  

3. Please outline the budget in total for the maintenance of park fitness equipment in the 
local government area in the financial years 2019/20 and 2020/21. 

S129275 

  



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Sydney Park Skate Facility  

4. By Councillor Scott 

Question 

Councillors were advised in May 2019 that construction will completed on the Sydney Skate 
Park Facility by early-2020.  

Could Councillors please be advised of the following: 

1. When will construction commence on the Sydney Park Skate Facility? 

2. When will Sydney Park Skate Facility be open to the public for use? 

S129275 

Johnston’s Creek Skate Facilities  

5. By Councillor Scott 

Question 

Councillors were advised in November 2018 that construction was expected to be completed 
on skate facilities at Johnston’s Creek by the end of 2019.  

Could Councillors please be advised of the following: 

1. When will construction commence on skate facilities at Johnston’s Creek, if this has 
not yet occurred? 

2. Is construction on skate facilities at Johnston’s Creek expected to be completed by the 
end of 2019? 

3. When will skate facilities at Johnston’s Creek be open to the public for use? 

S129275 

  



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Gunyama Park Skate Facilities  

6. By Councillor Scott 

Question 

Councillors were advised in November 2018 that construction was expected begin on 
Gunyama Park skate facilities as part of Stage 2 of the Gunyama Park Project. In December 
2018, a motion was carried unanimously by Council that, where possible, the works be 
brought forward to Stage One of that project. 

Could Councillors please be advised of the following: 

1. When will construction commence on skate facilities at Gunyama Park, if this has not 
yet occurred? 

2. When is construction on skate facilities at Gunyama Park expected to be completed? 

3. When will skate facilities at Gunyama Park be open to the public for use? 

S129275 

Redfern Park Skate Ramp  

7. By Councillor Scott 

Question 

Councillors were advised in November 2018 that a new skate ramp would be installed in 
Redfern Park in 2019. 

Could Councillors please be advised of the following: 

1. When will construction commence on the skate ramp at Redfern Park, if this has not 
yet occurred? 

2. When is construction on the skate ramp at Redfern Park expected to be completed? 

3. When will the skate ramp at Redfern Park be open to the public for use? 

S129275 

  



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Indoor Sporting Facilities in Alexandria  

8. By Councillor Scott 

Question 

It was announced in August 2018 that the City had procured property on Huntley Street, 
Alexandria, for the purpose of construction of indoor sporting facilities. Further, in March 
2019, the Perry Park Recreation Centre, including indoor sporting facilities, was opened. 

Could Councillors please be advised of the following: 

1. What is the timeframe for the construction to begin, and to be completed, of indoor 
sporting facilities at the site on Huntley Street, Alexandria? 

2. How much is budgeted for the construction of indoor sporting facilities at the site on 
Huntley Street in the 2019/20 and 2020/21 financial years?  

3. What plans, if any, are currently in place to upgrade existing indoor sporting facilities at 
the Perry Park Recreation Centre, particularly enclosing the courts?  

4. What is the timeframe for such an upgrade to begin, and to be completed? 

5. How much is budgeted for the upgrade of these facilities in the 2019/20 and 2020/21 
financial years? 

S129275 

Notification of Local Parking and Traffic Changes  

9. By Councillor Scott 

Question 

The City is required to notify local residents and businesses of local parking and traffic 
changes under relevant legislation and policy.  

Could Councillors please be advised of the following: 

1. What is the process for providing notification to local residents and businesses for local 
parking and traffic changes? 

2. When notification is sent via post, is notification sent to the registered owner of the 
premises? 

3. When notification is sent via post, is notification sent to the occupier of the premises? 

4. If the owner and the occupier of the premises are different persons or groups - for 
example, a business owner renting a shop premises, or a tenant renting a home - is 
notification sent to both the owner and occupier of the premises?  

  



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

5. Is there a policy which outlines whether owners, or occupiers, or both, should be 
notified? 

6. Does the City use letterbox drops as well as mailed letters as part of this process?  

7. If letterbox drops are used, could Councillors please be advised as to the rate of reply 
to the City for mailed letters as compared to letterboxed materials for all consultations 
on for local and traffic matters for the 12 months to date? 

S129275 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

Item 10 

Supplementary Answers to Previous Questions 

There are no Supplementary Answers to Previous Questions on Notice for this meeting of 
Council. 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Item 11.1 

Notices of Motion 

Support for Disability Advocacy Services in NSW  

By Councillor Miller 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council note: 

(i) independent disability advocacy, information and peak representative 
organisations:  

(a) play a critical role in upholding the rights of people with disability; and 

(b) assist people with disability achieve full inclusion through individual one-
on-one advocacy and systemic advocacy work;   

(ii) without secure long-term funding commitments from the NSW Government, 
people with disability will not have access to advocates to resolve issues of 
discrimination, exclusion, or poor treatment and care; 

(iii) all areas of an individual, their families and carers lives are impacted: education, 
health, justice, transport, employment, accessing infrastructure, accommodation 
and community activities;  

(iv) the NSW Government will cease funding to disability advocacy services on June 
30 2020;  

(v) the City of Sydney works to ensure Sydney is an inclusive and accessible city for 
everyone. We endeavour to make the physical components of the city accessible 
and provide social and economic opportunities for people with disability to enable 
full participation in city life; and 

(vi) the City stands with people with disability and their families in supporting the 
NSW Disability Advocacy Alliance’s call for secure, permanent funding for 
independent disability advocacy, information and peak representative 
organisations in NSW; and 

(B) the Lord Mayor be requested to write to the Premier of NSW, Gladys Berejiklian, and 
the Minister for Families, Communities and Disability Services, Gareth Ward, asking 
them to guarantee secure, permanent funding for independent disability advocacy, 
information and peak representative organisations in NSW. 

S129262 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Item 11.2 

Notices of Motion 

Reusable Coffee Cup Scheme  

By Councillor Phelps  

It is resolved that:  

(A) Council note: 

(i) it is estimated that Australians use more than three billion disposable coffee cups 
each year. Disposable coffee cups are not recyclable due to the plastic lining 
inside the cup used for waterproofing, forcing these cups to end up in landfill, 
where they take 50 years to degrade; 

(ii) the council is currently partnered with Responsible Cafes, however, there still 
exists impediments to using reusable coffee cups that are not solved by this 
partnership, including: 

(a) individuals forgetting to wash or bring a reusable cup; and 

(b) reusable cups are often expensive, which may deter individuals from 
buying them; 

(iii) Sustainable Sydney 2030 aims to both create “a globally competitive and 
innovative city” and be “a leading environmental performer”. As the City plans for 
Sustainable Sydney 2050: 

(a) piloting a cup exchange program will allow the City to align more closely 
with this message of sustainability by reducing the amount of waste 
contributed to landfill, and help the City progress its goal of becoming a 
zero waste city; and  

(b) with over one million visitors to the City daily, and such an ingrained coffee 
culture, the City has an opportunity to become a global leader in 
minimising wasteful consumption to pave the way for sustainable 
environmental and economic policy;  

(iv) cup exchange programs, where the council provides businesses with reusable, 
heat-resistant and dishwasher-safe cups made from recyclable polypropylene 
which are loaned to the user for a small deposit fee (usually €1 or $2), which is 
returned when the cup is returned, have successfully been implemented across 
various cities in Germany, including Freiburg, Munich and Berlin. In Freiburg, 60 
to 70 per cent of the café sector participates in the program and over 26,000 
FreiburgCups have been distributed; 

(v) cup exchange programs have also been tested with success by 
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) in their Sydney and Melbourne offices, and a 
program is currently being trialled by the Inner West Council; and 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

(vi) implementing a cup exchange program can help save millions of disposable 
coffee cups from ending up in landfill, and helps to offset the burden on small 
businesses and cafes (which are the backbone of the City’s coffee culture), to 
provide a ‘substantial’ discount often expected by customers bringing their own 
cups; and  

(B) the Chief Executive Officer be requested to prepare a report on the potential for 
piloting a reusable cup initiative to reduce consumption on single use, disposable 
coffee cups in the City of Sydney to be distributed to Council. The report should 
include:  

(i) the potential for a pilot to be limited to a single suburb to allow universal café 
participation to be achievable in the short term;  

(ii) local café owners who might be willing to become advocates and assist council 
in recruiting other businesses; 

(iii) links to any available business cases or reviews of municipal or city-wide or 
government-initiated reusable cups schemes; and 

(iv) given the large proportion of disposable cups that are deposited in domestic 
waste bins, the potential for such a pilot to be funded through the waste levy or 
reserve. 

S129263 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Item 11.3 

Notices of Motion 

Vale Ron Austin  

By Councillor Phelps  

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council note: 

(i) Ron Austin, 78er and LGBTQI+ activist, sadly passed away on the morning of 
April 13 2019; 

(a) Ron was a lifelong activist for the LGBTQI+ community whose 
contributions include being a founding member of "Phone a Friend", a 
phone counselling service which still exists today as QLife, an early 
member of Sydney’s first lesbian and gay political organisation, the 
Campaign Against Moral Persecution (CAMP Inc) and a member of 'The 
78ers' who participated in the first Sydney Gay and Lesbian Mardi Gras; 

(b) Ron was the originator of the idea to have a night-time street party to 
commemorate the ninth anniversary of the 1969 Stonewall Uprising in New 
York. The street party, held on 24th June 1978, was a turning point in 
LGBTQI+ activism in Australia and would later evolve into the Sydney Gay 
and Lesbian Mardi Gras; and 

(c) Ron's philosophy of taking the LGBTQI+ Community out of the bars and 
into the streets played a large part in changing attitudes towards the 
LGBTQI+ community in Sydney and highlighted the importance of one 
being able to publicly be themselves;  

(B) the Chamber be requested to observe one minute's silence to honour the contribution 
of Mr Austin to the LGBTQI+ community and the City of Sydney; and  

(C) a letter, under the Lord Mayor's signature, be conveyed to Mr Austin's family 
expressing Council's sincere condolences.  

S129263 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Item 11.4 

Notices of Motion 

Safety Audit of Local Schools  

By Councillor Scott 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council note: 

(i) a recent serious incident in the shared zone in Whitehorse Street, Newtown, 
highlighted a significant traffic and pedestrian safety concern in the vicinity of 
Newtown Public School; 

(ii) the good work of City staff to respond to this incident, including: 

(a) the immediate removal of a garden bed installed in December 2018 which 
obstructed pedestrian flow and forced foot traffic into Whitehorse Street;  

(b) stationing traffic controllers in the area to direct traffic and prevent further 
incidents occurring;  

(c) consideration of increased signage for the shared zone in Whitehorse 
Street; and  

(d) seeking medium and long-term solutions to improve pedestrian safety at 
the intersection of Whitehorse Street and King Street, Newtown; and 

(iii) schools are a site of pedestrian and vehicle traffic in the local government area, 
and children constitute a particularly vulnerable pedestrian group; and  

(B) the Chief Executive Officer be requested to: 

(i) conduct a pedestrian and traffic safety audit on areas in the vicinity of primary 
and secondary schools in the local government area, including consultation with 
community members and school principals and P&C organisations as part of this 
safety audit; 

(ii) investigate solutions to issues and areas of concern identified as part of the 
safety audit; and 

(iii) provide a report on the results to Councillors. 

S129266 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Item 11.5 

Notices of Motion 

Save the Curtain Call Statue  

By Councillor Scott 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council note: 

(i) the ‘Curtain Call’ statue (also known by the name ‘The Final Curtain’) by 
Australian artist Les Kossatz, was completed in 1987 and was displayed in 
Darling Harbour until circa 2015; 

(ii) the statue features four bronze lambs and a shearer’s ramp; 

(iii) the statue was removed from public display in approximately 2015 as part of 
NSW state government redevelopments of the Darling Harbour area;  

(iv) the lambs from the statue currently sit disassembled in a nearby light rail depot 
which is owned by Property NSW;  

(v) there is an impending sale for this site, and the future of the lambs is unclear;  

(vi) the statue represents the working-class and industrial history of the area, 
including the wool stores at Pyrmont and the wool-shipping industry, which 
operated from Darling Harbour in the 19th century;  

(vii) the local community is passionate about the restoration of the statue to public 
display to acknowledge and celebrate this history; and 

(viii) the preferred location for display is at the corner of Pyrmont Bridge Road and 
Harris Street, close to the site of the wool stores;  

(B) Council support community efforts to restore the ‘Curtain Call’ statue to public display 
at the corner of Pyrmont Bridge Road and Harris Street; and 

(C) the Lord Mayor be requested to write to the Minister for Customer Service, the Hon. 
Victor Dominello MP, advocating that the ‘Curtain Call’ statue be restored to public 
display at the corner of Pyrmont Bridge Road and Harris Street. 

S129266 



Council 13 May 2019 
 

 

Item 11.6 

Notices of Motion 

Doggy Pool Parties  

By Councillor Scott 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council note: 

(i) Christchurch City Council, Christchurch and Waimakariri District Council, 
Canterbury, in New Zealand have recently opened the doors of their seasonal 
local pools for a dog-only swim day to mark the beginning of winter; 

(ii) the "Doggy Pool Parties", as they were termed, proved successful with local 
residents, and these Councils hope to make them a regular annual event; 

(iii) Australia has the highest levels of pet ownership in the world; and 

(iv) pets have a number of social benefits, and they and their owners form an 
important part of our City community; and  

(B) the Chief Executive Officer be requested to: 

(i) investigate options for the opening of the City's seasonal pool, Andrew (Boy) 
Charlton Pool, for one day each year for a Doggy Pool Party, in which dogs can 
swim and play, upon confirmation from the NSW Department of Health that the 
activity is suitable and subject to cleaning costs following the event; and  

(ii) report back to Councillors via the CEO update on the outcomes of this 
investigation. 

S129266 


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes
	2 Disclosures of Interest
	3 Minutes by the Lord Mayor
	4 Memoranda by the Chief Executive Officer
	5 Matters for Tabling
	6 Report of the Corporate, Finance, Properties and Tenders Committee
	7 Report of the Cultural and Community Committee
	8 Report of the Transport, Heritage and Planning Committee
	9 Questions on Notice
	10 Supplementary Answers to Previous Questions
	11.1 Support for Disability Advocacy Services in NSW
	11.2 Reusable Coffee Cup Scheme
	11.3 Vale Ron Austin
	11.4 Safety Audit of Local Schools
	11.5 Save the Curtain Call Statue
	11.6 Doggy Pool Parties

